
From: Titman, Dorothy R. on behalf of Harris, Robert R.
To: MCP-Chair
Cc: Estes, Phillip; Pereira, Sandra; Butler, Patrick; Kronenberg, Robert; Vaias, Emily; kkubit@elmstreetdev.com;

Harris, Robert R.
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[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Exercise caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or
responding.

I am resending the letter from yesterday and including as an attachment to it, the Resolution
referenced in the letter.

Robert R. Harris, Attorney 
Lerch, Early & Brewer, Chtd. rise to every challenge 
7600 Wisconsin Ave | Suite 700 | Bethesda, MD 20814 
T 301-841-3826 | F 301-347-1779 | Cell 301-580-1319 
rrharris@lerchearly.com | Bio

Attention: ​​​​This message is sent from a law firm ​and may contain information that is privileged or confidential. If you received this
communication in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete this message and any attachments. Thank you. ​
www.lerchearly.com
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Robert R. Harris 
Attorney 
301-841-3826 
rrharris@lerchearly.com 
 


February 22, 2024 
 
The Honorable Artie Harris 
Chairman 
Montgomery County Planning Board 
2425 Reedie Drive 
Wheaton, MD  20902 
 
Re:  Clarksburg Town Center (Project Plan Amendment No. 91994004E, Preliminary Plan  
 Amendment No. 11995042E, and Site Plan Amendment No. 820070221) 
 
Dear Chairman Harris: 
 
I am writing to you as counsel for the applicant in these proceedings, in response to information 
recently submitted for the record.  More specifically, I want to comment on and support Staff’s 
conclusions in their Staff Report (dated 2/16/24) with respect to approvability of these applications 
under an earlier approval regarding the subject property referred to as the "Plan of Compliance" or 
"Compliance Program".  In short, for the reasons discussed below, I agree that the Plan of 
Compliance allows the Planning Board to approve these applications. 
 
By way of background, back in 2006, after residents alleged violations of previously approved 
Clarksburg development, the earlier developers and the community entered a "Settlement 
Agreement" dated April 6, 2006 intended to address the alleged development violations.  The 
Planning Board was not a party to the Agreement.  Therefore, the parties to that Agreement sought 
Planning Board approval of a Plan of Compliance to guide future actions by the Board, and the 
parties signed a Release with respect to alleged violations.  The terms and conditions of the resulting 
Plan of Compliance were intended as remedial measures to address those prior violations.  Those 
violations included building setbacks, road design, building heights, phasing and location of MPDUs, 
construction of amenity features and other factors where the resulting development did not conform 
with the underlying approvals.  By Resolution No. 06 – 20, dated August 17, 2006, the Montgomery 
County Planning Board approved the Plan of Compliance.  In that Resolution, the Planning Board 
noted, however, that "the compliance program is conceptual in nature, and that additional review of 
more detailed plans may involve modifications."  It further stated that "the Board expressly reserves 
all lawful discretion to consider, approve, approve subject to conditions or disapprove any such 
future application according to the law and merits presented at the time."  Subsequent to the Plan of 
Compliance, the various Clarksburg builders and developers involved in the project at the time 
addressed each of the alleged violations and incorporated the corrective measures for those violations 
according to the terms of the Plan of Compliance. 
 
The applicant in this proceeding was not a party to either the Settlement Agreement or the Plan of 
Compliance, nor was the area of the Clarksburg Town Center development that is the subject of the 
currently pending applications, the subject of any alleged violations.  In fact, there was no 
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development at all on this portion of the property at that time so there could not have been any 
violations.   
 
Since approval of the Plan of Compliance, the Planning Board has approved multiple amendments to 
the Project Plan, Preliminary Plan and Site Plan that were not part of the Plan of Compliance.  
Among others, over community objections that plans were not consistent with the Settlement 
Agreement, the Planning Board approved amendments to these plans revising the amount of 
commercial development and residential units permitted, while reducing the number of parking 
spaces previously contemplated.  As such, it reconfirmed that the Plan of Compliance did not control 
the future design, timing or uses in the town center retail core area and that, per the terms of the Plan 
of Compliance, the Planning Board was not precluded from approving changes.  This, of course, is 
basic Maryland law.  No private party can preclude a government agency from exercising its duty to 
act on development applications in a manner deemed appropriate at the time by the government 
agency having authority over the proposed development.  Moreover, a Planning Board sitting as a 
Board in one year, cannot preclude a future Board from taking actions inconsistent with those of the 
prior Board. 
 
Nearly 20 years after the Settlement Agreement, many circumstances have changed in terms of 
County land use policies, market conditions, and development objectives.  In making a decision 
today, to finally facilitate development of the long-awaited retail center, the Planning Board is 
obligated to consider all of these factors and others and approve development that substantially 
conforms with the applicable master plan, meets the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and 
satisfies the current criteria for approval of project plans, preliminary plans and site plans as well as 
amendments to previously approved plans, even if it is not what someone may have contemplated 
many years ago.  Nothing in the Plan of Compliance precludes this and doing so would be contrary to 
the public interest.  As Staff concludes in its Staff Report, the development now proposed for the 
Clarksburg Town Center meets all applicable requirements and is not precluded by the Plan of 
Compliance.  
 
Cordially yours, 


 
Robert R. Harris 
 
cc:  The Honorable Mitra Pedoeem 
 The Honorable James Hedrick 
 The Honorable Shawn Bartley 
 The Honorable Josh Linden 
 Mr. Phillip Estes 
 Ms. Sandra Pereira 
 Mr. Patrick Butler 
 Mr. Robert Kronenberg 
 Ms. Emily Vaias 
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From: Adrienne Elefantis
To: MCP-Chair
Subject: please approve the Clarksburg Town Center plan amendment on 2/29
Date: Friday, February 23, 2024 12:27:40 PM

[EXTERNAL EMAIL] Exercise caution when opening attachments, clicking links, or responding.

Dear Planning Board members,

My husband and I are writing to express our unequivocal support for the Clarksburg Town Center (CTC) plan
amendment you are reviewing on February 29. Please vote to approve this plan so that my family and neighbors can
escape this dreaded state of limbo we've been stuck in and finally see our neighborhood completed after 20 years.

Please know this request is coming from two individuals who have spent the past two decades in Clarksburg and
almost 50 years in Montgomery County, who know this development's complicated history, and who are committed
only to the best interests of Clarksburg Town Center homeowners and residents.

My husband and I bought our townhouse in 2004 and spent the past 16 years raising two children here. My husband
testified before the planning board in 2015 to support earlier plan amendments. I've been actively engaged in
community advocacy through my position on the Clarksburg HOA Board of Directors and Grounds Committee.
Being on the Board I believe I have a good grasp of what the community wants, based on comments we hear at
annual meetings. Everyone's number one wish here is simply to see our neighborhood finished.

We truly value the hard work you do every day for the betterment of our County. Our region would not be as
beautiful and well preserved if not for your diligence and thoughtful approach to development. However, the County
works in a time scale that is extremely slow compared with how most people live their lives -- and that's in the
BEST of cases. CTC has been the WORST of cases, stuck in a glacial cycle of amendment, review, amendment,
review for years. This prolonged uncertainty has actually harmed my family's quality of life. When you have young
children who from diapers to kindergarten in 5 years, and from kindergarden to high school in 9 years, 20 years is an
entire lifetime lived. Our children weren't even born when we moved to Clarksburg and now our eldest is starting to
look at colleges.

We've had to watch from the sidelines as Clarksburg got five new public schools, more new planned communities,
outlets, gas stations and restaurants, a drug store. Meanwhile, we still have a pile of dirt where a town center should
be. Families like mine are losing out on the kind of cohesive neighborhood experience we were promised, during
important years we will never get back.

It is time to close the books on CTC and let the developer "get it done." We like the specifics of the plan presented
by Third Try and believe they are putting forth a good faith effort to create the best possible version of Town Center
given current market conditions. Please give this plan amendment your vote of approval. We are counting on you
and thank you so much for your support.

Sincerely,
Adrienne and Demetrios (Jim) Elefantis
23800 Branchbrier Way
Clarksburg MD 20871
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